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March 14, 2005

Memorandum
To:  

Columbia River Basin Fish and Wildlife Authority, Anadromous Fish 


Committee

From:  
Jen Stone, Columbia River Lamprey Technical Workgroup

Subject:  
Response to AFC concerns regarding Critical Uncertainties document

The Columbia River Lamprey Technical Workgroup (Workgroup) would like to address the concerns of the Columbia River Basin Fish and Wildlife Authority, Anadromous Fish Committee (AFC) regarding the Critical Uncertainties document.  The AFC’s concerns are italicized and in bold, followed by the response of the Workgroup.

1) Why was population delineation ranked lower than Lamprey status or passage? It appears that in order to address status it would be important to first identify the population structure or at least attempt to address both issues. Population delineation also had a strong influence on the listing decisions for Pacific lamprey. The AFC would like the Workgroup to reconsider the ranking of Population Delineation or give a more detailed explanation of their considerations.

A question was brought up by the AFC concerning the Workgroup’s ranking of three anadromous lamprey critical uncertainties, namely “lamprey status”, “lamprey passage”, and “population delineation”.  Briefly, the AFC argued that “population delineation” was an extremely important uncertainty for lampreys (perhaps the most important?) and they were concerned that the Workgroup ranked it lower than “lamprey status” and “lamprey passage”.  For clarification, “lamprey status” addresses issues associated with the abundance, distribution, run timing, etc., of lamprey populations; “lamprey passage” addresses a variety of passage-related problems for these fish; and “population delineation” is primarily concerned with lamprey genetics and stock structure.  

The Workgroup spent considerable time and effort prioritizing the critical uncertainties and members agreed that it would be inappropriate to change rankings now.  However, further clarification regarding the ranking of these uncertainties may be warranted.
The majority of characteristics (e.g., abundance, distribution, run timing, population trends, density) associated with CRB lamprey “status” are unknown.  The same can be said for “population delineation”—not much is known about lamprey genetic structure.  Because of recent work by the USACE and NOAA-Fisheries, more information is available on issues associated with “lamprey passage”, but much of this is relevant to only lower Columbia River mainstem dams.  The main reason “lamprey status” and “lamprey passage” were ranked higher than “population delineation” was because the former critical uncertainties have more immediate near-term management implications.  For restoring lamprey populations, information on abundance, distribution, and passage problems is important now.  For listing lampreys under the ESA, information on genetics of lampreys is important.  In our opinion, knowledge of aspects such as population abundance, distribution, run timing, trends, etc., will help identify streams or watersheds where lampreys may be having problems and are in need of immediate assistance—irrespective of information on lamprey genetics.  Similar reasoning can be used for lamprey passage: problems with passage (juveniles and adults) comprise a significant limiting factor for lamprey populations and are issues that can be addressed now—irrespective of lamprey genetics.  Thus, in summary, the Workroup determined that further population declines and decreases in CRB lamprey distribution were fully undesirable conditions relative to lamprey conservation, again irrespective of population structure. 

In reality, the issue brought up by the AFC will be minimal since the Workgroup will work to ensure that research addressing “lamprey status” and “population delineation” will occur simultaneously.  It should also be noted that the ranking of uncertainties will likely evolve over time.  The vision of the Workgroup is that information on status will be collected in the near term, and that the need for information on population delineation will become imminent. 

2) In the section for Anadromous Lamprey Passage, would the group please differentiate between strategies for juvenile and adult passage migration.

In regard to comments received from the AFC on the anadromous lamprey passage strategies, the Workgroup resolved not to specifically prioritize juvenile vs. adult 

passage needs.  This was based on the fact that each structure will potentially have different priorities based on its effects on each life stage.  Two sentences were added to the justification section to clarify this point.  In addition, Tom Iverson commented that there needed to be more support for the high priority given to this critical need.  A sentence was added (in the justification section) to emphasize the fact that most concerns are with mainstem hydropower dams.  This is based on the fact that they are known to delay and obstruct adult lamprey and can result in juvenile mortalities as well.  Moreover, they potentially affect all upstream populations, regardless of population structure.
3) In the section for Anadromous Lamprey Population Delineation, we believe it would be useful for the group to recommend adding to existing genetic maker libraries (such as the project Margaret Docker has developed) than developing one from scratch. The AFC would like the Workgroup to consider this change.

The Workgroup agreed and changes were made to the document to address AFC’s concerns.
4) It would be helpful if the Workgroup could add a section on how the knowledge gaps were ranked (similar to the table for biological benefits).

Critical Uncertainties were ranked based on Biological Benefit scores.  Knowledge Gap scores for each Critical Uncertainty were not ranked, and were used only to break a tie. 

The Workgroup has modified the Methods portion of the document to make this portion clearer.
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